
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Jan 09 2025 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (Thunderbolt Elementary School, Jennifer Bassett, Music Teacher)

Invocation (Rev. Dawn Keane, Green Cove Methodist Church)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Academic Team Champions

2. Recognition of 2024-2025 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Finalists

Presenters

School Showcase (Thunderbolt Elementary School, Amy Bathurst, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

3. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

4. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

5. C1 - Minutes of School Board Organization Meeting on November 19, 2024, Workshop on December 2, 2024; Student
Hearings and Regular Meeting on December 12, 2024

2024 Nov 19 Organization Mtg.pdf

2024 Dec 2 Workshop.pdf

2024 Dec 12 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

Human Resources

6. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

January Personnel Consent Agenda 12_12_24.pdf

Page 1 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54471
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54487
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54459
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54460
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54451
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54451
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-nov-19-organization-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-dec-2-workshop.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54458
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-personnel-consent-agenda-12_12_24.pdf


Instruction-Academic Services

7. C3 -  Elementary Student Out of State Travel

AES_Out of State FT_4.25.25.pdf

Instruction-K-12 Academic

8. C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

January 2025 Student Travel.pdf

Business Affairs

9. C5 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

01.09.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

10. C6 - Monthly Financial Reports for November, 2024

November 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

November 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

11. C7 - Budget Amendment Report for November 30, 2024

Nov 2024 Budget Amendment.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

12. C8 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT DECEMBER, 2024

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT DECEMBER, 2024.pdf

Operations-Facilities

13. C9 - Change Order #2 for Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation

Change Order #2 for OPE Restroom Renovation

14. C10 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Roof
Repair/Replacement

15. C11 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School
Restroom Renovations

16. C12 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park Junior High School
Restroom Renovations

17. C13 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Athletic
Field Lighting

18. C14 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School
Gym/Locker Room Renovations

19. C15 - Project Priority List (PPL) to identify eligible projects for Capital Outlay and Debt Services (CO & DS)

Project Priority List 1 9 2025.pdf

Page 2 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54466
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20241203105229316.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54485
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2025-student-travel.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54453
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/010925-24-25-allocation-summary.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54484
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2024-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2024-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_10.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54486
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nov-2024-budget-amendment.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54467
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-december-2024.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54462
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-for-ope-restroom-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54463
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54463
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54464
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54464
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54465
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54465
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54468
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54468
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54469
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54469
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54470
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/project-priority-list-1-9-2025.pdf


20. C16 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Charles E. Bennett Elementary School Security Lighting
Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for CEB Security Lighting Repair Replacement

21. C17 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Charles E. Bennett Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Change Order #2 (Days Only) for CEB Security Lighting Repair Replacement

22. C18 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting
Repair/Replacement

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

23. C19 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Change Order #2 for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

24. C20 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) Lake Asbury Junior High School Classroom Addition

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for LAJ Classroom Addition

25. C21 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Oakleaf Junior High School Classroom Addition

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for OLJ Classroom Addition

26. C22 - Final Completion of Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation

Certificate of Final Completion for OPE Restroom Renovation

27. C23 - Prequalification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 1.9.25

28. C24 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Green Cove Springs Junior High
School CTE Lab Upgrades

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 3 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54473
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54473
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-ceb-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54474
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-days-only-for-ceb-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54475
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54475
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54476
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54477
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-laj-classroom-addition.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54478
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-olj-classroom-addition.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54482
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-for-ope-restroom-renovation.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54483
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-1925_1.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54493
https://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=54493


School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of Academic Team Champions

Description
Recognition of Clay County Academic Team champions. 
Junior Varsity

Shayla Abbas-
Lincoln Bailey-
Sophia Jiang-
Evan Hanner-
Olivia Jiang-
Sophia Jia-
Naomi Khaykin-
Shreya Metla-
Ava Sahbudak-

Varsity
Victor Aguilar-
David Rafalski-
Samuel Nye-
Nathan Alcudia-
Kyleigh Bailey-
Ted Klopman-
Kathryn McNeill-
Kevin Taing-
Ben Bangkrasor-
Margaret Hughes-
Danil Frakt-
Kennedy Keuning-
Samantha Illovsky-

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Page 4 of 192

DRAFT



Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognition of 2024-2025 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Finalists

Description
Recognizing the finalists for School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes
Recognizing the School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Finalists

Strategic Plan Goal
2.3.4 Continue the employee recognition programs that enrich the District's culture. increase employee engagement, and provide
fulfilling employee experiences.

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 7 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 8 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Organization Meeting on November 19, 2024, Workshop on December 2, 2024; Student Hearings
and Regular Meeting on December 12, 2024

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2024 Nov 19 Organization Mtg.pdf

2024 Dec 2 Workshop.pdf

2024 Dec 12 Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

Page 9 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-nov-19-organization-mtg.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2024-dec-2-workshop.pdf


Date: Nov 19 2024 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

November 19, 2024 - School Board Organization Meeting

Invocation  (Rev. Mike McDonald, Grace Anglican Church, Fleming Island, FL)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvarez, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Swearing-In Ceremony

1. David Broskie, Superintendent of Schools

Minutes:

 Former Florida State Senator Robert Bradley administered the Oath of Office to David S. Broskie.

2. Beth Clark, School Board Member District 3

Minutes:

Judge Raymond Forbess Jr. administered the Oath of Office to Beth Clark.

3. Robert Alvero, School Board Member District 2

Minutes:

Florida State Committman Scotty Taylor administered the Oath of Office to Robert Alvero.

Organization of the School Board

4. Elect School Board Chair

Minutes:

Ashley Gilhousen nominated Beth Clark.

Beth Clark nominated Ashley Gilhousen.

Michele Hanson nominated Erin Skipper. 

With no further nominations, the floor was closed for Chair and a verbal/show of hands vote was taken on the nominations.

Voting aye for Beth Clark:  Ashley Gilhousen

Voting aye for Ashley Gilhousen:   Beth Clark, Ashley Gilhousen

Voting aye for Erin Skipper:  Ashley Gilhousen, Robert Alvero, Michele Hanson, Erin Skipper

Mrs. Skipper was elected Chair by a 4-1 vote.

 

Page 10 of 192

DRAFT



5. Elect School Board Vice Chair

Minutes:

Michele Hanson nominated Beth Clark.

Beth Clark nominated Ashley Gilhousen. 

With no further nominations, the floor was closed for Vice Chair and a verbal/show of hands vote was taken on the nominations.

Voting aye for Beth Clark:  Ashley Gilhousen 

Voting aye for Ashley Gilhousen:   Ashley Gilhousen, Robert Alvero, Erin Skipper, Beth Clark, Michele Hanson

Mrs. Gilhousen was elected Vice Chair by a 5-0 vote.

6. Establish Date and Time of Meetings

Minutes:

Mrs. Gilhousen made a motion, seconded by Mrs.Clark, to approve the Superintendent's recommendation: 

That the board establish meeting dates and times for Regular School Board meetings for the period December 2024 through
November 2025 as the first Thursday of each month with the exception of the December meeting, due to the Joint Conference, being
held on Thursday, December 12, 2024, the January meeting, due to the New Year's holiday, being held on Thursday, January 9, 2025,
and the July meeting, due to the July 4th holiday, being held on Thursday, June 26, 2025.  All meetings will be held at 6:00 p.m. at
Fleming Island High School in the Teacher Inservice Center.

Motion carried 5-0.

7. Authorize Payment of Bonds for School Board Chair and Vice-Chair

Minutes:

Motion to approve by Mrs. Gilhousen and seconded by Mrs. Hanson.

Motion carried 5-0.

8. Bank Resolutions Due to Change of School Board Chair and Vice-Chair

Minutes:

The motion was approved by Mrs. Clark and seconded by Mrs. Gilhousen.

Motion carried 5-0.

Adjournment  (7:20 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 11 of 192

DRAFT



Date: Dec 02 2024 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Gratio Place and Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs

December 2, 2024 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Erin Skkipper)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Robert Alvero, District 2; Beth Clark, District 3, Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley
Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S. Broskie)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on December 12, 2024

December-12-2024-regular-school-board-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions:

Recognize Art in the Capitol Winner - no discussion;
Recognize Winners of the Len Mattiace Foundation Anti-Bullying Contest - no discussion;
Recognition of Board member Mrs. Skipper Recipient of the 2024 Appreciation Award from Tobacco Free Clay - no discussion;
Recognize 2024 Founders' Week Art Contest Winners - no discussion;
Recognition of Clay County Student-Athletes of the Month - no discussion;
Recognition of Clay County Coaches of the Month - no discussion;
Athletics Check Presentation to American Cancer Society - no discussion;
Recognize Schools Earning Medals at State Marching Championships - no discussion;
Recognition fo 2024-2025 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year Semi-finalists - no discussion;

Discussion Agenda:

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;
D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;
D3 Human Resources Special Action C - no discussion;
D4 Human Resources Special Action D - no discussion;
D5 Human Resources Special Action E - no discussion;
D6 Human Resources Special Action F - no discussion;
D7 Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Revisions to School Board Policy 6.01, Educational and Ancillary Facilities - no
discussion;
D8 Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Attendance Boundary Realignment for Oakleaf Junior High, Lake Asbury Junior
High, and Wilkinson Junior High Schools - no discussion;

Consent Agenda:

C1 Minutes of School Board Workshop on October 29, 2024; Student Hearings and regular Meeting on November 7, 2024 - no
discussion;
C2 Controlled Open Enrollment (COE) Plan for the 2025-2026 School Year - Superintendent Broskie provided an overview of
the process and listed the open schools;
C3 Proposed Student Calendar for the 2026-2027 School Year - Mr. Broskie noted that the 2026-2027 school year will bring
start time changes with middle school starting not prior to 8:00 and high school starting not prior to 8:30; a task force is working
on the implementation of new start times and additional information will be shared upon conclusion of the legislative session in
May 2025 once any new data or revisions have occurred;
C4 Personnel Consent Agenda - no discussion;
C5 Complete Salary Schedule 2024-2025 - brief discussion of ESE secretary changes that were not approved; 

Page 12 of 192

DRAFT



C6 Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and Clay County Fire Rescue (CCFR) - agreement
is to retain a firefighter employed by the Clay County Fire Department to teach fire classes in CCDS;
C7 Elementary Student Out of State Travel - no discussion;
C8 Advertise the 2023-2024 through 2025-2026 Policies and Procedures (P&P) Manual and set the Public Hearing for
February 2025 - Mrs. Hanson requested documents for clarification to include inclusion practices into general education across
the spectrum, copies of the most recent Best Practices in Inclusion being used, and an explanation as to what the inclusion of
more students into the gifted program includes;
C9 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;
C10 2026 Early College Program Contract Between the School Board of Clay County and District Board of Trustees of St.
Johns River State College - no discussion;
C11 Proposed Revised AMIKids-Clay County Employee and Student Calendar for 2024-2025 School Year - no discussion;
C12 2024-2026 School Health Services Plan - no discussion;
C13 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025 - brief discussion of the revision of an Adult & Community Education 10-
month position to a 12-month position to provide services over the summer, financed through Adult Education categorical
funds;
C14 Monthly Financial Reports for October 2024 - no discussion;
C15 Budget Amendment Report for October 31, 2024 - no discussion;
C16 Deletion of Certain Items Report November 2024 - no discussion;
C17 BID Award - no discussion;
C18 Trane Contract Award for Maintenance Service Agreement for Six Schools (KHE, KHS, MRE, WES, WJH, CHE) - no
discussion;
C19 Change Order #4 for Clay High School Parking Lot Renovation/Redesign - no discussion;
C20 Final Completion of Clay High School Parking Lot Renovation/Redesign - no discussion;
C21 Fleming Island High School HVAC Repair/Replacement Contract Award - no discussion;
C22 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Tynes Elementary School Fire Alarm
Repair/Replacement - no discussion;
C23 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Oakleaf Village Elementary School Fire alarm
Repair/replacement - no discussion;
C24 Schematic/Preliminary/final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Plantation Oaks Elementary School Fire Alarm
Repair/Replacement - no discussion;
C25 Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Wilkinson Junior High School Safety & Security
Control Access - no discussion;
C26 Change Order #1 for Lakeside Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovation - no discussion;
C27 Substantial Completion of Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation - no discussion;
C28 Prequalification of Contractors - no discussion;
C29 Final Completion of Orange Park High School Media Center Renovation - no discussion.

2. Apptegy Update

December 2nd_ Board Workshop Appetgy Update Presentation.pdf

Minutes:

Terri Dennis, Coordinator of Communications/Media, shared the attached visual update of Apptegy.  The timeline for implementation,
completed initial designs, and next steps were shared.

3. Discussion of Board Meeting Process

Minutes:

Mrs. Clark requested the board consider holding general public comment at the end of the meeting, following adjournment, with no
live stream.  Board member discussion included making sure meeting requirements continue to be met if the cameras are turned off,
the desire to ensure speakers receive their First Amendment right to free speech, possibly reducing the speaking time from three to
two minutes, the inability of the superintendent and board to respond if general comments are heard at the very end of the meeting,
potential legal implications of commenting on some things as the board acts as a quasi-judicial body, and how other districts are
handling public comment.  A consensus was reached to move general public comment to the end of the meeting, with no live stream,
immediately prior to adjournment.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments  (None)

School Board Attorney Comments

4. School Board Attorney Comments

Minutes:

John Steinmetz, School Board Attorney, welcomed Robert Alvero, School Board Member, District 2.

Page 13 of 192

DRAFT



School Board Comments

5. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Skipper initiated discussion with board members to consider having board members' new business items at workshop as the first
items on the agenda.  Mr. Broskie expressed his hope that he would have conversation with the board members on any new
initiatives.  The board reached a consensus to take up new business items first during workshops.  Discussion also included the
request for agenda items to have all supporting documents attached when released to the board.  Mr. Broskie provided assurances
that materials will be available no later than one week prior to the board meeting with the exceptions of the 48-hour revisions.  The
board secretary will email the board as attachments are added that occur after the release of the agenda.

Mrs. Hanson requested a dollar amount for annual fees paid to Purvis and Gray.  She also wants to ensure that, when working on
Exceptional Student Education documents, those policies are aligned with the Neola policies.  She requested a link to be able to
access and spend some time in review of the Neola proposed policies.  Mr. Broskie assured the board that they will receive the
policies in plenty of time to review and that the first section to be reviewed will be Human Resources as many of those policies are
foundational to others.  Kelly Watt, Chief of Staff, advised that Neola is currently working on preparing those policies and the board
will have them three or four weeks in advance of the first section's review.

Mrs. Skipper also noted she has made visits and spoken with people about the new Audio Enhancement public announcement
system.  Comments are favorable and the customizations are appreciated.  She would like the board to begin thinking about
nominating a board member to serve on the Internal Audit Committee.  Mr. Broskie advised that two applications have been received
and he is continuing to reach out directly to qualified individuals who are civic-minded and have a financial background to serve on
this committee.

Adjournment  (10:20 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools Board Chair

Page 14 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Enact a highly effective recruitment and professional development plan along with opportunities for growth and career
development to ensure all students have access to a world class education to become life-long learners for success in a global and
competitive workplace and in acquiring applicable life skills.
Strategy 2.1.1 Develop strategic partnerships with organizations and universities to source new talent for a diverse workforce that
is effective and highly-qualified for non-instructional, instructional, and administrative positions throughout CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.3 Expand involvement in community-sponsored career fairs, providing the opportunity to recruit a diverse
population to the multiple career paths within CCDS.
Strategy 2.1.4 Continue to streamline the application and onboarding process to successfully engage and hire quality applicants.
Strategy 2.1.5 Collaborate to strengthen CCDS’ branding and marketing to increase the awareness and presence of career
opportunities.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

January Personnel Consent Agenda 12_12_24.pdf

Page 15 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-personnel-consent-agenda-12_12_24.pdf


Page 16 of 192

DRAFT



Page 17 of 192

DRAFT



Page 18 of 192

DRAFT



Page 19 of 192

DRAFT



Page 20 of 192

DRAFT



Page 21 of 192

DRAFT



Page 22 of 192

DRAFT



Page 23 of 192

DRAFT



Page 24 of 192

DRAFT



Page 25 of 192

DRAFT



Page 26 of 192

DRAFT



Page 27 of 192

DRAFT



Page 28 of 192

DRAFT



Page 29 of 192

DRAFT



Page 30 of 192

DRAFT



Page 31 of 192

DRAFT



Page 32 of 192

DRAFT



Page 33 of 192

DRAFT



Page 34 of 192

DRAFT



Page 35 of 192

DRAFT



Page 36 of 192

DRAFT



Page 37 of 192

DRAFT



Page 38 of 192

DRAFT



Page 39 of 192

DRAFT



Page 40 of 192

DRAFT



Page 41 of 192

DRAFT



Page 42 of 192

DRAFT



Page 43 of 192

DRAFT



Page 44 of 192

DRAFT



Page 45 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 -  Elementary Student Out of State Travel

Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Argyle Elem.
Sch.

April
25,2025

Valdosta, GA 6th grade

Students will be studying force and motion, in
addition to changes in force and unbalanced forces. 
For the trip, students will spend time studying roller
coasters (force and velocity) and designing their
own. 

         
         

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of state student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Heather Teto, Chief of Elementary Education, heather.teto@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6906.

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

AES_Out of State FT_4.25.25.pdf

Page 46 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20241203105229316.pdf


Page 47 of 192

DRAFT



Page 48 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 49 of 192

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                                                                         Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose
Lake Asbury
Junior High

1/9 -
1/11/25

Tampa, FL
Honor
Band

Perform at the FMEA Conference

Clay High School
2/5 -
2/10/25

Kissimmee,
FL

Cheerleadi
ng

Compete in the National High School Cheer
Championship

Clay High School
2/28 -
3/1/25

Cairo, GA
ROTC
Brain Brawl

ROTC Brain Brawl Championship

Clay High School 1/25/25
Waycross,
GA

ROTC Air
Rifle Group

ROTC Air Rifle Championship

Clay High School
3/20 -
3/22/25

Tampa, FL Baseball Tournament

Clay High School
2/28 -
3/1/25

Adel, GA Baseball Tournament

Fleming Island
High

1/31 -
2/2/25

Orlando, FL FFEA FFEA State Conference

Keyston Heights
High

2/13 -
2/16/25

Various
locations in
FL

11th and
12th grade
ROTC

Group team building opportunities

Middleburg High
1/31 -
2/2/25

Orlando, FL FFEA FFEA State Conference

Middleburg High
2/28 -
3/1/25

Cairo, GA NJROTC NJROTC Academic Championship

Middleburg High 4/2 - 4/6/25
Pensacola,
FL

NJROTC NJROTC Navy National Championship

Middleburg High
2/27 -
3/1/25

Montverde,
FL

Softball Softball Tournament

Oakleaf High 4/4 - 4/5/25 Orlando, FL
Senior
Class

Grad Bash

Oakleaf High
1/31 -
2/2/25

Orlando, FL FFEA FFEA State Conference

Orange Park
High

12/6 -
3/8/25

Various
locations

Wrestling
Team

Reagional and State Competitions

Orange Park
High

1/11 -
1/12/25

Gainesville,
FL

Boys
Basketball

Basketball Tournament

Orange Park
High

1/8 -
1/11/25

Tampa, FL Band All State Band Conference

Ridgeview High
1/10 -
1/11/25

Tallahassee,
FL

NJROTC Drill meet and Tour State Capital

Ridgeview High
1/31 -
2/1/25

Douglas, GA NJROTC Drill Championship

Ridgeview High
1/31 -
2/2/25

Orlando, FL FFEA FFEA Conference

Ridgeview High
3/19 -
3/21/25

Tampa, FL
Drama
Classes

Florida State Thespian Festival

         

Page 50 of 192

DRAFT



Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Chief of Secondary Ed; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

January 2025 Student Travel.pdf

Page 51 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2025-student-travel.pdf


Page 52 of 192

DRAFT



Page 53 of 192

DRAFT



Page 54 of 192

DRAFT



Page 55 of 192

DRAFT



Page 56 of 192

DRAFT



Page 57 of 192

DRAFT



Page 58 of 192

DRAFT



Page 59 of 192

DRAFT



Page 60 of 192

DRAFT



Page 61 of 192

DRAFT



Page 62 of 192

DRAFT



Page 63 of 192

DRAFT



Page 64 of 192

DRAFT



Page 65 of 192

DRAFT



Page 66 of 192

DRAFT



Page 67 of 192

DRAFT



Page 68 of 192

DRAFT



Page 69 of 192

DRAFT



Page 70 of 192

DRAFT



Page 71 of 192

DRAFT



Page 72 of 192

DRAFT



Page 73 of 192

DRAFT



Page 74 of 192

DRAFT



Page 75 of 192

DRAFT



Page 76 of 192

DRAFT



Page 77 of 192

DRAFT



Page 78 of 192

DRAFT



Page 79 of 192

DRAFT



Page 80 of 192

DRAFT



Page 81 of 192

DRAFT



Page 82 of 192

DRAFT



Page 83 of 192

DRAFT



Page 84 of 192

DRAFT



Page 85 of 192

DRAFT



Page 86 of 192

DRAFT



Page 87 of 192

DRAFT



Page 88 of 192

DRAFT



Page 89 of 192

DRAFT



Page 90 of 192

DRAFT



Page 91 of 192

DRAFT



Page 92 of 192

DRAFT



Page 93 of 192

DRAFT



Page 94 of 192

DRAFT



Page 95 of 192

DRAFT



Page 96 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2024-2025

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district department and division is staffed for the 2024-2025 school year.
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocation changes are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected in attachment.

Review Comments

Attachments

01.09.25 - 24-25 Allocation Summary.pdf

Page 97 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/010925-24-25-allocation-summary.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS  2024-2025 SUMMARY  Board Meeting, January 09, 2025

Pending Board Approval 01/09/2025

School/Dept Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2024-2025 ACTIONS

General Funds

ESE - 9005 (0.2) Occupational Therapist
Increased  support for students needing 
Occupational Therapy ($13,600) ($4,775) ($18,375)

ESE - 9005 1.0) Occuational Therapy Assistant
Increased  support for students needing 
Occupational Therapy $41,160) $14,451) $55,611)

MHS - 0391 (0.9) ESE Assistant, General Health
Align allocations to better seve MHS 
students ($19,670) ($6,906) ($26,575)

MHS - 0391 0.9) ESE Assistant, Behavior Health
Align allocations to better seve MHS 
students $19,670) $6,906) $26,575)

IT - 9040 (1.0) ITS Data Services Assistant Realignment of duties within department ($41,868) ($14,700) ($56,568)

IT - 9040 1.0) Data Management Specialist Realignment of duties within department $41,868) $14,700) $56,568)
TOTAL: $27,560) $9,676) $37,236)

Federal Funds 410

MHS - 0391 1.0) 4.0 Cafeteria Assistant
Increased participation due to Smart Mouth 
Pizza Program $11,656) $4,092) $15,748)

MHS - 0391 (1.0) 5.0 Cafeteria Assistant
Increased participation due to Smart Mouth 
Pizza Program ($14,570) ($5,116) ($19,686)

MHS - 0391 1.0) 6.0 Cafeteria Assistant
Increased participation due to Smart Mouth 
Pizza Program $17,484) $6,139) $23,623)

TOTAL: $14,570) $5,116) $19,686)

Page 98 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Monthly Financial Reports for November, 2024

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending November 30, 2024.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Strategy 2:  Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize
available resources necessary to provide an enironment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learnng.  Promote fiscal
transparency and communication.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for
November, 2024.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

November 2024 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

November 2024 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts 50 Thousand and Greater.pdf

Page 99 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2024-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/november-2024-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50-thousand-and-greater_10.pdf


Page 100 of 192

DRAFT



Page 101 of 192

DRAFT



Page 102 of 192

DRAFT



Page 103 of 192

DRAFT



Page 104 of 192

DRAFT



Page 105 of 192

DRAFT



Page 106 of 192

DRAFT



Page 107 of 192

DRAFT



Page 108 of 192

DRAFT



Page 109 of 192

DRAFT



Page 110 of 192

DRAFT



Page 111 of 192

DRAFT



Page 112 of 192

DRAFT



Page 113 of 192

DRAFT



Page 114 of 192

DRAFT



Page 115 of 192

DRAFT



Page 116 of 192

DRAFT



Page 117 of 192

DRAFT



Page 118 of 192

DRAFT



Page 119 of 192

DRAFT



Page 120 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Budget Amendment Report for November 30, 2024

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available
resources necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for  October 2024 as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Nov 2024 Budget Amendment.pdf

Page 121 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/nov-2024-budget-amendment.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS RESOLUTION TO AMEND DISTRICT BUDGET 

FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
FOR MONTH ENDING November 30, 2024 

 
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments 
to the district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State 
Board form are changed from the original budget approved by the School Board. The Budget Amendments are 
procedurally necessary to update our budget to reflect changes outlined in the attached statements. 

 

FUND DESCRIPTION 

GENERAL FUND (100) THE GENERAL FUND IS THE LARGEST FUND WITHIN 
THE ACCOUNTING STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT. THIS FUND IS USED TO REPORT THE 
DISTRICT’S DAILY, MONTHLY AND ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
OPERATIONS OF THE SCHOOLS AND DISTRICT OFFICE. 

GENERAL FUND VOTED MILLAGE (105) THE VOTED MILLAGE FUND ARE FUNDS APPROVED BY 
THE CLAY COUNTY VOTERS TO SUPPORT SAFETY AND 
SECURITY AND OTHER OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES. 

DEBT SERVICE (2XX) DEBT SERVICE FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR 
AND REPORT FINANCIAL RESOURCES THAT ARE 
RESTRICTED, COMMITTED, OR ASSIGNED TO 
EXPENDITURES FOR THE DISTRICT’S PRINCIPAL AND 
INTEREST PAYMENTS FOR ITS OUTSTANDING DEBT. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND(3XX) CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR 
AND REPORT FINANCIAL RESOURCES THAT ARE 
RESTRICTED, COMMITTED, OR ASSIGNED TO 
EXPENDITURES FOR MAJOR CAPITAL OUTLAYS, 
INCLUDING THE ACQUISITION OR CONSTRUCTION OF 
CAPITAL FACILITIES AND THEIR CAPITAL ASSETS. 

SPECIAL REVENUE FOOD SERVICE (410) SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, FOOD SERVICES ARE USED 
TO ACCOUNT FOR AND REPORT THE PROCEEDS OF 
SPECIFIC REVENUE SOURCES THAT ARE RESTRICTED OR 
COMMITTED TO EXPENDITURES FOR THE FOOD 
SERVICES OPERATIONS. 

SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER (420,44X) SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS, OTHER ARE USED TO 
ACCOUNT FOR AND REPORT THE PROCEEDS OF 
SPECIFIC FEDERAL REVENUE SUCH AS TITLE I, TITLE II, 
TITLE III, CARES ACT FUNDING THAT ARE RESTRICTED 
OR COMMITTED TO EXPENDITURES FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PROGRAM. 

School District Clay County 
  

Page 122 of 192

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Item Backup 

 

NOVEMBER 2024 IMPACT STATEMENT 

PURPOSE OF IMPACT STATEMENT 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district budgets and related impact on fund balance 

due to: 

a. Increases/decreases in estimated revenue. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs and new information. 

 

GENERAL FUND 100: 

Increases to Estimated Revenue 

1 Increase in Gifts, Grants & Bequests $19,515 

2 Increase in Student Fees 9,212 

3 Increase in Misc. Local Resources 77,309 

   

 Total Adjustments to Estimated Revenue $106,036 

 

1. Increase to Increase in Gifts, Grants & Bequests was due to various donations from local 

partners. 

2. The increase to Student Fees were due to Adult and Community Education testing  

3. Increase in Misc. Local Resources of $77,309 was due to Capital Asset purchases from 

various schools, a donation for a local partner and All County Chorus, Math Field Day, and 

Spelling Bee funding.  

 

Increases and/or Decreases to Appropriations 

1 Increase in Instruction $44,703 

2 Decrease in Pupil Personnel Services (46,894) 

3 Increase in Instructional Media 3,323 

4 Increase in Instructional Training/Development Services 60,775 

5 Increase in School Administration 18,686 

6 Increase in Fiscal and Central Services  1,912 

7 Increase in Pupil Transportation Services 200,786 

8 Increase in Operation of Plant 40,558 

9 Decrease in Maintenance of Plant  (63,618) 

10 Increase in Community Services 12,000 

 Total Adjustments to Appropriations: $272,231 

 

Adjustments to appropriations are based on changing needs and new information. 

The impact on the General Fund Balance for the items described above is a decrease to fund 

balance of $166,195 

 Page 123 of 192

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Item Backup 

 

ONE MILL FUND 105: 

To reflect monthly adjustments to One Mill Fund and related impact on fund balance due to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 

There was no change to the fund balance for the One Mill Fund 

 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (2XX): 

To reflect monthly adjustments to debt service budgets and related impact on fund balance due to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 

There was no change to the fund balance for the Debt Service funds. 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS (3XX): 

To reflect adjustments to major capital construction projects budgets and related impact on fund balance due 

to: 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 
 

There was no change to the fund balance for Capital Projects funds. 

 

SCHOOL FOOD SERVICES (410): 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district Food Services program budgets and related 

impact on fund balance due to: 
 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 

There was no change to the fund balance for School Food Services  

 

 

 

 

Page 124 of 192

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

Item Backup 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE OTHER (42X) 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district budgets and related impact on fund balance 

due to: 

Increases and/or Decreases to Grants 

1 Increase in I.D.E.A. $5,125 

2 Decrease in Title I ($32) 

   

 Total Adjustments to Grants: $5,093 

 

1. Increase to I.D.E.A. revenue funds were adjusted to IDEA PreK award. 

2. The decrease in Title I was a correction to roll forward amount.  

 

Adjustments to appropriations are based on changing needs and new information. 

There was an increase to the fund balance of the Special Revenue Other Funds of $3. 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND – ESSR/AARP (44X) 

To reflect monthly adjustments to school and district ESSR and AARP program budgets and 

related impact on fund balance due to: 

 

a. Increases and/or decreases in estimated revenue. No monetary effect. 

b. Adjustments to appropriations based on changing needs. No monetary effect. 

 

There was no change to the fund balance of the Special Revenue Funds. 

 

Page 125 of 192

DRAFT



Page 126 of 192

DRAFT



Page 127 of 192

DRAFT



Page 128 of 192

DRAFT



Page 129 of 192

DRAFT



Page 130 of 192

DRAFT



Page 131 of 192

DRAFT



Page 132 of 192

DRAFT



Page 133 of 192

DRAFT



Page 134 of 192

DRAFT



Page 135 of 192

DRAFT



Page 136 of 192

DRAFT



Page 137 of 192

DRAFT



Page 138 of 192

DRAFT



Page 139 of 192

DRAFT



Page 140 of 192

DRAFT



Page 141 of 192

DRAFT



Page 142 of 192

DRAFT



Page 143 of 192

DRAFT



Page 144 of 192

DRAFT



Page 145 of 192

DRAFT



Page 146 of 192

DRAFT



Page 147 of 192

DRAFT



Page 148 of 192

DRAFT



Page 149 of 192

DRAFT



Page 150 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT DECEMBER, 2024

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of  November, 2024.

Gap Analysis
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Strategy 5.4; Enhance fiscal practices that enable the district to maximize effectiveness and efficiency.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - December, 2024 as submitted

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT DECEMBER, 2024.pdf

Page 151 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-december-2024.pdf


Page 152 of 192

DRAFT



Page 153 of 192

DRAFT



Page 154 of 192

DRAFT



Page 155 of 192

DRAFT



Page 156 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Change Order #2 for Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer, or owner and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer or staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for removal of the existing door frame, replacing with a new hollow metal
door and pin/dimple frame, and installing ADA compliant restroom signs/corresponding room number signs. The additional time
requested is forty-five (45) calendar days.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve change order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will increase the contract amount by $9,015.17. Architect fees will not increase as a result of this
change order. These funds are available and budgeted in Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 for OPE Restroom Renovation

Page 157 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-for-ope-restroom-renovation.pdf


Page 158 of 192

DRAFT



Page 159 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Roof Repair/Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Clay High School Roof
Repair/Replacement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $600,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 160 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Restroom
Renovations

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Restroom
Renovations.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $620,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 161 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom
Renovations

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park Junior High School Restroom
Renovations.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $650,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 162 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Athletic Field
Lighting

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Athletic Field
Lighting.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $415,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 163 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker Room
Renovations

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Orange Park High School Gym/Locker
Room Renovations.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $908,375.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 164 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Project Priority List (PPL) to identify eligible projects for Capital Outlay and Debt Services (CO & DS)

Description
The PPL reflects projects that will use CO & DS funding. Without their listing on the PPL, they are not eligible for expenditures.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Authorized expenditure of CO & DS funds for the projects listed on the PPL.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsiblity through the effective management of district operations and maximize available resources necessary
to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conductive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the PPL.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This action identifies projects eligible to use CO & DS funds but does not approve funding in itself. The Educational Facilities
Work Plan approves project funding.

Review Comments

Attachments

Project Priority List 1 9 2025.pdf

Page 165 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/project-priority-list-1-9-2025.pdf


Page 166 of 192

DRAFT



Page 167 of 192

DRAFT



Page 168 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Charles E. Bennett Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $103,656.11 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $5,938.08 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for CEB Security Lighting Repair Replacement

Page 169 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-ceb-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 170 of 192

DRAFT



Page 171 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Charles E. Bennett Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer and staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for forty-five (45) days to be added to the contract due to increased
procurement times for backordered materials needed for the project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will not increase the contract amount. The substantial completion date will now be February 24,
2025.  Final completion date is March 26, 2025.  Architect fees will not increase as a result of this change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 (Days Only) for CEB Security Lighting Repair Replacement

Page 172 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-days-only-for-ceb-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 173 of 192

DRAFT



Page 174 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $71,315.26 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $4,107.47 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

Page 175 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 176 of 192

DRAFT



Page 177 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Change Order #2 (Days Only) for Doctors Inlet Elementary School Security Lighting Repair/Replacement

Description
Change orders are initiated by the contractor, architect/engineer or owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the project
as defined by the plans and specifications. Change orders are reviewed by the architect/engineer and staff prior to submission to
the School Board for approval. This change order is for forty-five (45) days to be added to the contract due to increased
procurement times for backordered materials needed for the project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order # 2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
If approved, this change order will not increase the contract amount. The substantial completion date will now be February 24,
2025.  Final completion date is March 26, 2025.  Architect fees will not increase as a result of this change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 for DIS Security Lighting Repair Replacement

Page 178 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-for-dis-security-lighting-repair-replacement.pdf


Page 179 of 192

DRAFT



Page 180 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) Lake Asbury Junior High School Classroom Addition

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $1,824,443.28 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $103,225.74 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for LAJ Classroom Addition

Page 181 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-laj-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 182 of 192

DRAFT



Page 183 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for Oakleaf Junior High School Classroom Addition

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save sales tax. The direct purchases
are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #1.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $3,213,181.99 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $181,784.82 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #1 (Direct Purchasing) for OLJ Classroom Addition

Page 184 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-1-direct-purchasing-for-olj-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 185 of 192

DRAFT



Page 186 of 192

DRAFT



Page 187 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Final Completion of Orange Park Elementary School Restroom Renovation

Description
Establish a final completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF)
and Florida Statutes. The project, as determined by the project manager and project architect/engineer, has reached final
completion on November 29, 2024, in accordance with the project documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Certificate of Final Completion for OPE Restroom Renovation

Page 188 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/certificate-of-final-completion-for-ope-restroom-renovation.pdf


Page 189 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Prequalification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires school boards to prequalify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for prequalification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their prequalification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently prequalified at the time of bidding may bid on a school board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Prequalification of Contractors is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor prequalification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for prequalification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve the attached contractor prequalification list.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 1.9.25

Page 190 of 192

DRAFT

https://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-1925_1.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Lance Addison, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Baker Design Build  Professional Engineer, 
General, and Underground 

Utility & Excavation 
Contractor 

$20,000,000.00 January 31, 2026 

Next Dimension Construction, Inc. Roofing Contractor $2,000,000.00 January 31, 2026 

Trane U.S., Inc. General and Mechanical 
Contractor 

$100,000,000.00 January 31, 2026 

Ulloa Management Group, LLC General and Roofing 
Contractor 

$1,000,000.00 January 31, 2026 

 

Page 191 of 192

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

January 9, 2025 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Green Cove Springs Junior High School CTE
Lab Upgrades

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to schematic/preliminary/final (phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, preliminary, and final plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure fiscal responsibility through the effective management of district operations in an effort to maximize available resources
necessary to provide an environment that is safe, efficient, and conducive to learning.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Green Cove Springs Junior High School
CTE Lab Upgrades.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Lance Addison, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan. The architect’s estimated construction cost is $500,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 192 of 192

DRAFT


